
HIGHLAND, ILLINOIS 
MINUTES OF REGULAR SESSION 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS ADVISORY BOARD 
CITY HALL, 115 BROADWAY 

MONDAY NOVEMBER 14, 2011 
7:00 PM 

 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Marron at 7:00 PM.  
 
Roll Call 
Members present: Chairman George Marron, Vice‐Chairman Jon Boulanger, and Board Member Sharon 
Rusteberg.  
Also present: Councilman Neill Nicolaides, City Manager Mark Latham, Director of Electric Dan Cook, and 
Operations Manager Steve Ferguson. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Board Member Rusteberg suggested the following changes to the October 10, 2011 Minutes: 
 

 Second page, second paragraph “that” to “then direct connections”.  

 Second page, third paragraph “The board agreed and the board agreed” omit “and the board 
agreed”  

 Second page, fourth paragraph add “the” to page two, paragraph four that reads “Mark said 
the”  

 Second page, under “Connection to Troy Update” third line change “interest” to “connection” 

 Third page, first sentence change “moves” to “move” 

 Third page, first sentence under “Report on Services Outages” change “and posted” to “and had 
posted” and change “complained about their internet services” to “complained about their 
[competitors] internet services” 

 Last paragraph, sentence eight change “are a good” to “are as good” 

 Last paragraph, last sentence change “Board Member” to “The Board” 
 
Vice‐Chairman Boulanger made a motion to approve the October 10, 2011 Minutes of the 
Telecommunications Advisory Board meeting as corrected; seconded by Board Member Rusteberg. All 
voted in favor; the motion carried. 
 
Reports 
 
Updated List of Customer Sign Up and Installs  
Steve said that there are a total of roughly 385 services up and running at the present time which 
includes video beta customers as well. He explained that HCS is on track to achieve their goal of 80 
installs this month. Steve said that Andrea put together a spreadsheet of the LCP cabinets with the 
current penetration rates. He explained that the goal is 23% and that we are currently at about 17% 
which includes the new cabinet that has just recently opened up. Steve said that HCS is currently 
working on a marketing plan that will target the customers that have been passed in the open LCP areas, 
but are not signed up. Mark said that HCS has spoken with Scott Bowles and that the postcards had 
received about 10‐15% return rate which is not bad. Chairman Marron stated that this was very 
encouraging. 
 



Councilman Nicolaides asked when HCS would begin billing for video. Steve said that goal is December 1, 
2011, but that HCS is currently waiting for Fidelity to put all of the codes into their system to begin 
billing as well as waiting for all of the channels to be up and running. Steve said that it will be close on 
time, but he is still hoping to meet that date.  
 
Vice‐Chairman Boulanger asked what the response on the residential television with the customers that 
are currently hooked up. Steve said that the response has been great and that there are actually about 
45 beta customers with residential television. He said that HCS has been receiving calls left and right and 
that they are trying to get out to them as quickly as possible. Board Member Rusteberg asked if those 
customers are happy with the television services and Steve stated that there have been some glitches 
and some issues regarding not having all of the channels up and running. He said that for the most part 
he believes that the responses have been that the services are satisfactory right now.  
 
Phase II Status 
Steve said that LCP cabinets 3, 9, as well as 5 are 100% complete and that LCP 10 is about 99% complete. 
He said that LCP7C is 90% complete and that fiber was delivered at the end of October which has 
allowed for much work to be completed. He said that there was another fiber order with Corning that 
was put on hold because of the fiber shortage. He said that one of Corning’s larger contracts fell through 
therefore HCS is looking to receive fiber from that cancelled contract at the end of December. 
 
Steve mentioned the conversation during the previous Telecommunications Advisory Board Meeting 
regarding Corning providing fiber. He said that during the last meeting the information provided was 
initial and vague. He said that HCS has since spoke with Corning regarding this and have determined the 
tentative costs that HCS would incur for the fiber. He said that if HCS continues to do what has been 
done in the past, regarding labor and design, the cost is anticipated to be about $375,000. He said that 
Corning is coming in with the material and their labor at about $645,000. The Board discussed the 
differences in the cost estimate and how much work could be completed with the fiber that is expected 
to come in during the month of December. The Board discussed that it would be more beneficial for the 
staff to move forward with the fiber that would be arriving next month as opposed to moving forward 
with Corning on their proposal of $645,000. Steve added that he thought that this would be more 
beneficial to keep the design the same throughout for consistency instead of having several LCP cabinets 
that were different. 
 
Connection to Troy Update 
Steve said that the boring all the way out to the high school is completed and that there was some 
difficulty finding the connection into Troy High School. He explained that there was supposed to be an 
extra four inch duct [in the ATT manhole] for HCS to connect onto to go in, but it was not there. He said 
that it took about 3‐4 weeks to get locaters out on site to find the duct. He said that the duct was 
located and HCS now has a path into the high school. He said that most likely within the next couple of 
days or week the fiber should be pulled through the duct to make the connection complete [about 3 
days]. He said that in about 2‐3 weeks the connection to ATT should be complete for the redundant line. 
 
Mark and Steve told the Board that Scott Bowles and Harry Norton are working with ATT to determine if 
HCS will be responsible for purchasing the router for the redundant line to hook into the HCS network. 
 
Video Update 
Steve said that there are 45 beta testing customers and he told the Board that the last satellite has been 
installed.  He said that it is expected that within the next several days the rest of the channels will be up 
and running. 



 
Steve said that one of the problems that HCS has encountered with the television service is that a few of 
the channels will occasionally freeze. He said that they are unsure if it is a satellite problem or if it is a 
set top box problem. Steve said that another problem with the television is with the DVR. He said that 
the DVR should allow for recording up to 24 hours in advance, but instead the guide is only allowing to 
the view the show times 24 hours in advance instead of 7‐14 days. He said that the problem is currently 
being worked on. 
 
Chairman Marron asked if the overall quality is good and Steve stated that the picture quality is great. 
He said that some of the features with the Minerva software need to be installed and that the widgets 
are working. He said that there are some things that are not being utilized but will be when the testing 
process is finished. He said that HCS is very close to be up and running with the television service. 
 
Board Member Rusteberg asked who was overseeing the video and Steve said that Fidelity and 
MegaHertz will be the support for the video. He added that the Headend Technician will be in charge 
and that the America’s Center will be used for additional backup support. 
 
Update on Staffing of Headend Technician 
Steve announced that a Headend Technician was hired and that they will begin on Monday, November 
21. Steve said that he has about 15 years experience at ATT with U‐Verse as well as IP and that he is 
from Granite City. He said that he is willing to move to Highland and that we are currently under a 6 
month contract through Vantage Links with him. Steve said that if the City decides to bring him in after 
the 6 month contract the salary would be $62,000. 
 
Vice‐Chairman Boulanger asked what the tutorials were like on the television for the customers that 
may not understand how to use the remote. Steve said that he believes we will be able to put tutorial 
information on the local Highland station. Mark added that he has received phone calls about the 
service calls for helping with the television. Steve said that HCS is starting to receive a lot of calls after 
hours and is related to using the television service. He also added that he has received positive feedback 
about the customer service. Steve said that we will have 24/7 on‐call and that America’s Center will be 
putting together a call center for after hours to troubleshoot some of the issues over the phone before 
dispatching a lineman.  
 
Steve said that each LCP was set up to originally hook up 32 customers per LCP. He said that HCS will 
have to purchase new equipment from Calix because the LCP cabinets are beginning to fill up to the 
max.  
 
New Business 
 
Installation of Fiber Provided by Corning 
This topic was previously reported on. 
 
Next Meeting 
The next meeting of the Telecommunications Advisory Board is scheduled for December 12, 2011 at 
7:00 PM.    
 
Adjournment 
Vice‐Chairman Boulanger made a motion to adjourn the meeting; seconded by Chairman Marron. All 
members voted aye, none nay; the meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 


